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I. STATEMENT

1. This is a civil penalty assessment proceeding brought by the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff) against the Respondent, MetalMark Transportation, Inc. (MetalMark).

2. In Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 81827, Staff alleges that on October 31, 2006, MetalMark violated 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 382.115(a) by failing to implement an alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program.
  CPAN No. 81827 seeks imposition of a civil penalty in the total amount of $1,100.00 for this alleged violation.

3. On January 8, 2007, the Commission issued an Order setting this matter for hearing on February 27, 2007, in Denver, Colorado.  

4. The undersigned Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) called the matter for hearing at the assigned time and place.  Staff appeared through its legal counsel.  No appearance was entered by or on behalf of MetalMark.

5. During the course of the hearing testimony was received in support of Staff’s case from Mr. Joe Kelley, a Commission Compliance Investigator.  Exhibits 1 through 3 were identified, offered, and admitted into evidence.  At the conclusion of the hearing the ALJ took the matter under advisement.

6. In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the ALJ now transmits to the Commission the record and exhibits in this proceeding along with a written recommended decision.

II. FINDINGS OF FACT
7. MetalMark is an exempt passenger carrier with offices located at 351 S. 40th Street, Boulder, Colorado 80305.  It is authorized to provide charter or scenic bus transportation services pursuant to Registration No. CSB-00186.  See, Exhibit 1.  Registration No. CSB-00186 was issued to MetalMark on April 6, 2006, and was active and in good standing on October 31, 2006.    

8. On November 2, 2006, Mr. Kelley went to MetalMark’s offices in Boulder and conducted a transportation safety and compliance review of its operations.  Mr. Kelley’s review established that MetalMark had provided transportation services on October 31, 2006.  Among other potential safety violations, Mr. Kelley determined that MetalMark had not implemented an alcohol and drug testing program for its drivers on or prior to that date.
9. This determination was made on the basis of Mr. Kelley’s review of the file maintained by MetalMark for Fredrick Chard, the driver it used in connection with the service provided on October 31, 2006.  Mr. Chard’s file did not contain required documentation confirming that he had undergone pre-employment testing for controlled substances as required by 49 CFR 382.301(a) or that he qualified for the pre-employment testing exception afforded by 49 CFR 382.301(b).  Also, MetalMark could not produce documentation confirming that it had implemented or arranged to implement random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required by 49 CFR 382.305 or that it had provided its driver supervisors with the alcohol misuse and controlled substances use training required by 49 CFR 382.603.  
10. Shortly after conducting his review, Mr. Kelley prepared and mailed to MetalMark a copy of his completed Transportation Safety and Compliance Review Final Report (Report).  See, Exhibit 2.  The Report specifically advised MetalMark that it needed to establish proper alcohol and controlled substance testing procedures.  
11. In December 2006 Mr. Kelley contacted MetalMark and requested a meeting with its authorized representative, Jamie Vasquez, to determine whether it had implemented the requirements contained in the Report.  Such a meeting was held on December 19, 2006, at the Commission’s offices in Denver, Colorado.  Although contending that MetalMark had now implemented an alcohol and drug testing program, Mr. Vasquez was unwilling or unable to produce any documentation confirming that contention.  As a result, Mr. Kelley prepared and served Mr. Vasquez with CPAN No. 81827.  See, Exhibit 3.  

III. DISCUSSION
12. The Commission’s Safety Rules apply to exempt passenger carriers.  See, 4 CCR 723-6-6100(a)(I).  As indicated previously, they incorporate by reference certain portions of the federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, including virtually all of 49 CFR 382 relating to controlled substance and alcohol use testing.  49 CFR 382.115(a) requires all domestic-domiciled employers to implement the controlled substance and alcohol use testing provisions of 49 CFR 382 on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.  49 CFR 382.401 and 382.403 require employers to prepare, retain and/or make available for inspection various records documenting compliance with 49 CFR 382.  An employer’s failure to comply with the requirements imposed by 49 CFR 382 subjects it to a civil penalty of up to $1,100.00 for each violation.  See, 4 CCR 723-6-6105(c).

13. Commission enforcement personnel have authority to issue CPANs under § 40-7-116, C.R.S.  That statute provides that the Commission has the burden of demonstrating a violation by a preponderance of the evidence.

14. The testimony and exhibits admitted into evidence at the hearing conclusively establish that Metal Mark is an exempt passenger carrier, that it began commercial motor vehicle operations by at least October 31, 2006, and that, as of that date, it had not implemented the controlled substance and alcohol use testing provisions required by 49 CFR 382.  Therefore, MetalMark violated 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 CFR 382.115(a) as alleged in CPAN No. 81827.

15. Consideration of the factors set forth in 4 CCR 723-1-1302(b) leads the ALJ to conclude that the maximum penalty of $1,100.00 should be assessed in connection with MetalMark’s this violation.  Staff considers a motor carrier’s failure to comply with the drug and alcohol testing provisions of 49 CFR 382 to be “acute” or “critical” violations since the operation of motor vehicles by impaired individuals constitutes a direct threat to the safety of the traveling public.  Accordingly, the nature and gravity of violating these provisions is significant.  Also, the evidence establishes that Staff advised MetalMark of the need to implement a drug and alcohol testing program and provided it with sufficient opportunity to do so.  However, MetalMark did not avail itself of that opportunity.  As a result, it has a high degree of culpability in failing to comply with the subject regulations and has not demonstrated a good faith effort to achieve compliance in order to prevent future similar violations.
16. As a result of MetalMark’s failure to appear at the hearing, no evidence was presented concerning its ability to pay the maximum penalty or the effect payment of the same would have on its ability to continue its business.  The evidence suggests that MetalMark is a relatively small business and that it does not have a history of prior safety-related violations.  Nonetheless, these limited mitigating factors do not convince the ALJ that the penalty assessment should be reduced below the maximum amount.  The ALJ believes that imposition of the maximum penalty is necessary to deter future violations, to motivate MetalMark to comply with the subject regulations, and to punish it for its prior, illegal behavior.  

IV. CONCLUSIONS
17. Staff has sustained its burden of proving the allegations contained in CPAN No. 81827 by a preponderance of the evidence as required by § 40-7-116, C.R.S.

18. MetalMark should be assessed the maximum civil penalty of $1,100.00 for violating 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) and 49 CFR 382.115(a).

V. ORDER
A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Respondent, MetalMark Transportation, Inc. is assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $1,100.00 in connection with Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 81827 and shall pay this amount within ten days of the effective date of this Order.

2. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

3. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

4. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.

	(S E A L)

[image: image1.png]



ATTEST: A TRUE COPY

[image: image2.wmf] 

 

 


Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO



DALE ISLEY
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge
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� 4 CCR 723-6-6102(a)(I) incorporates certain portions of the federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, including all of 49 CFR 382 (except 49 CFR 382.507), into the Commission’s Safety Rules Regulating Transportation by Motor Vehicle (Safety Rules). 
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